
Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
August 21, 2017 

Page 1 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

Monday, August 21, 2017 
3:00 p.m. Tour of Inspection 

4:00 p.m. Open Session   
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR   
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI, VICE CHAIR 
      LYNN MOMBOISSE 
      THOMAS HOOD 
      ALEX HEISENGER 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
Shortly after 3:00 p.m., the Board will leave City Hall for an on-site Tour of Inspection. The public is 
welcome to follow the Historic Resources Board on its tour of the subject sites. The Board will return 
to City Hall at 4:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible.   
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do so now.  
Please state the matter on which you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the Board’s agenda will 
not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future meeting.  Presentations will 
be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board.  Persons are not required to give their name 
or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state their name in order that the Secretary may identify them.
  
E.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Consideration of the minutes of June 19, 2017 Historic Resources Board Meeting. 
 
F.  ITEM 
 
1. DR 16-477 (Goodhue Fink) 

David Fink, Project Applicant 
Dolores 4 NW of 7th Ave 
Block: 75; Lot 13 
APN: 010-147-003 

 Consideration of a Design Review (DR 16-477) 
application to construct a second-story addition 
above an existing one-story building located in 
the Central Commercial (CC) and Downtown 
Conservation (DC) Overlay District. 
 

1



Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
August 21, 2017 

Page 2 

2. MA 17-213  
      Sandra J. Markowski, Property owner  
      NW Cor. Santa Rita & Ocean Ave 
      Block: 66;  Lots: 2, 3 & 4  
      APN: 010-039-007 
 

 Consideration of a Resolution to add a historic 
resource to the Carmel Register and 
consideration of a recommendation to the City 
Council to approve a Mills Act Contract (MA 17-
213) for an existing historic residence located in 
the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District. 

 
G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT   

 
 
H. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1.    Discussion of Context Statement Update. 
 
 
J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
K.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board regarding any item 
on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning and Building Department 
located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean and 7th Avenues during normal business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board:  July 17, 2017 
      
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  The City of 
Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired (TDD) number is 1-
800-735-2929. 
 
The Sunset Center is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to come to the 
podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board Secretary.  If you need 
assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you would like to comment on, and the 
microphone will be brought to you. 
 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Catherine J. Tarone, Assistant City Planner, for the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing 
notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin board, posted at the Harrison 
Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln, June 16, 2017. 

Dated this 16th day of August 2017, at the hour of 10:00 a.m. 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Marc Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director 

2



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

June 19, 2017 
 

Sunset Center, Babcock Room  
East side of San Carlos Street 

Between 8th & 10th Aves. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Erik Dyar at 4:08 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair  
Kathryn Gualtieri 
Alex Heisinger 
Lynn Momboisse 

 
              ABSENT:  Thomas Hood 
 

 
 STAFF PRESENT: Marc Wiener, Community Planning Director 

Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 

B. TOUR OF INSPECTION  
 Tour of Inspections convened at 3:33 p.m.  
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Not applicable.  
 
D.  ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR 

Not applicable, Vice Chair Gualtieri appointed at May 14, 2017 Historic Resources Board 
Meeting.  
 

E. APPEARANCES 
N/A 
 

F. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Consideration of the minutes of the May 15, 2017 Historic Resources Board Meeting. 
 
Board Member Momboisse moved to approve the minutes of the May 15, 2017 
Historic Resources Meeting. Motion seconded by Board Member Momboisse and 
carried the following vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER, GUALTIERI, MOMBOISSE & DYAR 

3



NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: HOOD 
ABSTAIN:         COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
G. ITEM 

 
      1. DS 17-133 (Kuchman) 
       Paul Walchli, Project Designer  
       Carpenter St., 3 SW of 2nd Ave.   
       Block: 22; Lots: 9 
       APN: 010-022-022                 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 17-133) 
application for alterations in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) Zoning District. Included 
with this project is the request to place the 
property on the City’s Historic Register and 
waive the on-site parking requirement. 

 

Marc Wiener, Planning Director presented the staff report and noted staff recommends 
support. 
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing seeing 
 
Speaker #1: Paul Walchli, Project Designer summarized home owner’s intent and 
answered questions from the Board.  
 
Speaker #2: Mr. & Mrs. Kuchman, property owners provided further design detail and 
expressed the importance of keeping the historic look of the residence.  
 
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 
 
Board Member Heisinger moved to approve DS 17-133 (Kuchman), add residence to 
the Historic Registry and waive onsite parking requirement. Motion seconded by 
Board Member Momboisse and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER, GUALTIERI, MOMBOISSE & DYAR 
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: HOOD   
ABSTAIN:         COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

H.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Marc Wiener provided brief recap of Planning and Building activities.  

 
I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

Vice Chair Gualtieri noted she would like the Board to discuss the possibility of 
designating a Hugh Comstock Historic District.  

4



J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Vice Chair Gualtieri directed the Board to the Secretary of Standards Repair Guidelines 
and Guidelines for the Treatment of Historic Properties accessible on the California 
Office of Historic Preservation’s website page http://ohp.parks.ca.gov/. 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned 
at 4:57 p.m. 
 
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 

 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Erik Dyar, Chair 
 

 

 

5



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

August 21, 2017 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 
 
From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Review (DR 16-477) application to construct a 

second-story addition above an existing one-story building located in the 
Central Commercial (CC) and Downtown Conservation (DC) Overlay 
District. 

 
 
Application: DR 16-477          APN:  010-147-003 
Location: Dolores Street, 4 NW of 7th Avenue 
Block:  75 Lot:   13 
Applicant:  David Fink Property Owner:  Neil Goodhue  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The applicant is proposing to add a 1,570-square foot second-story condominium addition 
above the Cantinetta Luca restaurant and Salumeria Luca deli.  This project is located within the 
Downtown Conservation District and as such is required to undergo review by the Historic 
Resources Board (HRB) prior to a final Planning Commission decision. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Determine the consistency of the proposed project with the established design context of the 
Downtown Conservation District.   
  
BACKGROUND 
The project site is a 4,000-square foot lot located on Dolores Street, 4 northwest of 7th Avenue, 
adjacent to City-owned Picadilly Park.  The lot is developed with a 3,824-square foot one-story 
building that contains Cantinetta Luca restaurant and Salumeria Luca deli.  The applicant is 
proposing to add a 1,570-square foot second-story condominium addition that has a height of 
approximately 28.5-feet.  The proposed second-story addition would be clad with concrete 
panel siding and includes a rooftop deck and wood trellis on the front elevation and rooftop 
deck on the rear elevation.   

6



DR 16-477(Goodhue-Fink) 
August 21, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
This project was presented to the Planning Commission on July 12, 2017, as a Preliminary 
Concept Review. The applicant had originally proposed an elevator that would have encroached 
onto Piccadilly Park, however, at the request of the Planning Commission the elevator 
encroachment has been eliminated and the applicant is now proposing an internal set of stairs. 
In addition, the Planning Commission requested that the applicant consider setting back the 
second-story away from the north elevation to minimize the impact to Piccadilly Park.  No 
change has been made to the plans with regard to setting back the second story.   
 
This project is located within the Downtown Conservation District and as such is required to 
undergo review by the HRB prior to a final Planning Commission decision.  It is important to 
note that when the subject building was remodeled in 2006, it required a similar review by the 
HRB and was determined to be compatible with the neighborhood.  
 

PROJECT DATA FOR A 4,000-SQUARE FOOT SITE (Central Commercial District): 

 

Site Considerations Allowed Existing Proposed 

Floor Area  5,400 sf (135%) 3,824 sf (133%)  5,394 sf (135%) 

Building Coverage 3,200 sf (80%) 3,824 sf (95%) No Change 

Building Heighti 30’ 18’- 6”  28’ - 6” 

Parking Requirement 1 spaces  0 spaces 0 spaces* 

Setbacks Minimum 
Required 

Existing Proposed 

Front 0’ 0’(ground level) 0’ (ground level)/8’ - 7” (2nd 
story addition) 

Rear 0’ 0’ (ground level) 4’ (ground level)/51’ (2nd 
story addition) 

Side Yard 0’ 0’ 0’ 

*Parking requirement may be satisfied by payment of in-lieu fee (CMC 17.38.030.C) 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS:  
Downtown Conservation District 
According to CMC 17.20.280.B, the purpose of the review by the HRB is to ensure that the 
proposed development is consistent with the established design context of the Conservation 
District and that the development does not have any adverse effects on any historic resources 

7



DR 16-477(Goodhue-Fink) 
August 21, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 
in the area. For projects in the Conservation District the following two findings must be made 
by the HRB with an analysis by staff: 
 

1. All proposed new development shall not exceed the base floor area ratio 
requirements identified in CMC 17.14.140. 
 

Staff Analysis:  The proposed project meets the base floor area requirements for a 4,000-
square foot lot in the Central Commercial Zoning District. 

 
2. The proposed development is consistent with the established design context of the 

conservation district and will not adversely affect any historic resources on the project 
site or on adjacent sites.  
 

Staff Analysis:  In staff’s opinion, the proposed second-story addition is compatible with 
other buildings in the surrounding historic district.  Staff has identified the following design 
components that should be considered by the Historic Resources Board in determining the 
consistency of the proposed project with the established design context of the Downtown 
Conservation District:    
 
Building Height: The neighboring buildings along Dolores Street between Ocean and 7th 
Avenues vary in height, with some being one-story and small in scale, while other are two-
story with estimated heights ranging from 26-30 feet.  The proposed addition is 28.5 feet 
high and is compatible with the height of surrounding buildings. 
 
Finish Materials: The applicant is proposing that the second story be clad with dark-brown 
concrete panel siding. In staff’s opinion, the concrete panel siding may appear too 
contemporary and incompatible with the surrounding historic district.  A photograph of the 
concrete panel siding is included as Attachment C and a sample will be provided at the 
meeting.  As an alternative, stucco siding could be used to match the existing building. 
 
Architectural Style:  The existing one-story building is compatible with the surrounding 
neighborhood, in that it does not replicate historic architectural styles, nor does it appear 
too contemporary and in stark contrast to the surrounding buildings.  In staff’s opinion, the 
overall design of the second story addition is consistent with the existing building and 
compatible with the historic streetscape. However, the finish material should also be 
compatible as discussed in the previous section. 

8



DR 16-477(Goodhue-Fink) 
August 21, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 
Environmental Review 
The proposed project is categorically exempt from CEQA requirements, pursuant to Section 
15301 (Class 1) – Existing Facilities.  The project includes a 1,570-square foot addition to an 
existing 3,824-square foot commercial building, and therefore qualifies for a Class 1 exemption.  
The proposed alterations to the residence do not present any unusual circumstances that 
would result in a potentially significant environmental impact. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Attachment A – Site Photographs 
• Attachment B – Findings 
• Attachment C – Concrete Siding 
• Attachment D – Project Plans 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



Attachment A - Site Photographs 

 

 

Project Site – Facing Southwest 

 

Picadilly Park – Facing West 

 

10



 

NW Dolores/7th - Looking North  

 

NE Dolores/7th – Looking Northeast 

 

11



Attachment B – Findings for Approval 
 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 
 

FINDINGS FOR ACCEPTANCE 
 
DR 16-477 
Goodhue/Fink 
Location:  Dolores Street, 4 NW of 7th Avenue 
Block: 75;  Lot: 13 
APN:  010-147-003  
CONSIDERATION: 
 
Consideration of a Design Review (DR 16-477) application to construct a second-story addition 
above an existing one-story building located in the Central Commercial (CC) and Downtown 
Conservation (DC) Overlay District. 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT: 
1. The project site is a 4,000-square foot lot located on Dolores Street, 4 northwest of 7th 

Avenue, adjacent to City-owned Picadilly Park.  The lot is developed with a 3,824-square 
foot one-story building that contains Cantinetta Luca restaurant and Salumeria Luca 
deli.  The applicant is proposing to add a 1,570-square foot second-story condominium.    
The project site is located in the Central Commercial (CC) Zoning District and Downtown 
Conservation (DC) Overlay District. 
 

2. The proposed new development does not exceed the allowed base floor area ratio 
requirements identified in CMC 17.14.140. 

 
3. The proposed development is consistent with the established design context of the 

conservation district and will not adversely affect any historic resources on the project 
site or on adjacent sites. 
 

4. The proposed project is categorically exempt from CEQA requirements, pursuant to 
Section 15301 (Class 1) – Existing Facilities.  The project includes a 1,570-square foot 
addition to an existing 3,824-square foot commercial building, and therefore qualifies 
for a Class 1 exemption.  The proposed alterations to the residence do not present any 
unusual circumstances that would result in a potentially significant environmental 
impact. 

12



13



14



1

1

2

2

3

FINK RESIDENCE

LOT SIZE  :            4,000 SF

135% ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA :            5,400 SF

EXISTING BUILDING : 3,824 SF

(N)  PROPOSED SECOND STORY ADDITION : 1,570 SF

TOTAL  PROPOSED (E) + (N)  = 5,394 SF

ENCHROACHMENT AREA

(E) PUBLIC BATHROOM 66 SF

(E) TRASH ENCLOSURE 111 SF

(E) CITY OF CARMEL ELECTRIC BOX 16 SF

*ENCROACHMENT APPROVAL BY SEPARATE PERMIT

(N) PROPOSED STAIR TOWER 100 SF

                          (located inside column) 

AUGUST 8, 2017

SCALE : AS NOTED

SCALE:  3/16" = 1'-0"

ARCHITECT

REVISIONS

SCALE:  3/16" = 1'-0"

15



1

1

2

2

C

L

C  

L

 OF WALL IS PROPERTY LINE
C

L

FINK RESIDENCE

LOT SIZE  :            4,000 SF

135% ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA :            5,400 SF

EXISTING BUILDING : 3,824 SF

(N)  PROPOSED SECOND STORY ADDITION : 1,570 SF

TOTAL  PROPOSED (E) + (N)  = 5,394 SF

ENCHROACHMENT AREA

(E) PUBLIC BATHROOM 66 SF

(E) TRASH ENCLOSURE 111 SF

(E) CITY OF CARMEL ELECTRIC BOX 16 SF

*ENCROACHMENT APPROVAL BY SEPARATE PERMIT

(N) PROPOSED STAIR TOWER 100 SF

                          (located inside column) 

SCALE : AS NOTED

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

ARCHITECT

REVISIONS

AUGUST 8, 2017

16



SCALE : AS NOTED

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

ARCHITECT

REVISIONS

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

AUGUST 8, 2017

17



SCALE : AS NOTED

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

ARCHITECT

REVISIONS

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

AUGUST 8, 2017

18



13 R @ 7.08"

14 R @ 7.14"

SCALE : AS NOTED

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

ARCHITECT

REVISIONS

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

AUGUST 8, 2017

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

19



D
O

L
O

R
E

S
S

T
R

E
E

T
(

A
5

0
F

O
O

T
W

ID
E

C
IT

Y
S

T
R

E
E

T
)

LOT 13, BLOCK 75
VOLUME 1, C&T PAGE 2

EXISTING SITE PLAN

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

VOLUME 1, C&T PAGE 2
LOT 13, BLOCK 75

(
A

5
0

F
O

O
T

W
ID

E
C

IT
Y

S
T

R
E

E
T

)

D
O

L
O

R
E

S
S

T
R

E
E

T

7.

5.

POSITION AND DIMENSIONS (IF ANY) OF BUILDINGS AND OTHER STRUCTURES
ARE SHOWN HEREON APPROXIMATE ONLY DUE TO MEASUREMENT LIMITATIONS,
IRREGULAR SHAPE OF BRICK FACING, POP-OUTS, BULL NOSE CORNERS, ETC.

6.

THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY.

THE BEARING OF NORTH AS SHOWN ON THE MAP FILED IN
BASIS OF BEARINGS:

VOLUME 21, PAGE 47, OF PARCEL MAPS, AS FOUND MONUMENTED
BUT NOT SHOWN HEREON IS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY.

BENCHMARK:

SUBJECT PROPERTY AS SHOWN HEREON.
SET IN THE PAVEMENT NEAR THE NORTHEASTERLY CORNER OF THE
AN ELEVATION OF 50.0 HAS BEEN ASSIGNED TO A MAG NAIL & DISC
ELEVATIONS FOR THIS SURVEY ARE BASED ON AN ASSUMED DATUM.

1.
NOTES:

ALL BOUNDARY DATA SHOWN HEREON ARE FROM THE RECORDS,
BENEFIT OF A FIELD SURVEY SUPPLEMENTED BY RECORD DATA.
BOUNDARY LOCATIONS SHOWN HEREON WERE DETERMINED WITH THE

AND IS SHOWN APPROXIMATE ONLY - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

DISTANCES SHOWN ARE EXPRESSED IN FEET AND DECIMALS THEREOF.

ENTITLEMENTS OR ENCUMBRANCES AFFECTING THIS PROPERTY
MAY NOT NECESSARILY BE SHOWN.

2.

3.

CONTOUR INTERVAL = ONE FOOT.4.

UNDER MY DIRECTION, FROM FIELD DATA COLLECTED IN MAY 2017.
THIS MAP CORRECTLY REPRESENTS A SURVEY PREPARED BY ME AND/OR8.

NOT ALL UTILITY BOXES AND/OR UTILITY STRUCTURES ARE SHOWN

CONSIDERED TO CONVEY THE GENERAL UTILITY CONDITIONS ARE SHOWN.

INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO HOSE BIBS AND IRRIGATION VALVES.
ONLY THE VISIBLE UTILITY BOXES AND/OR UTILITY STRUCTURES THAT WERE

LEGEND:

CU D OL
I

EVR
U

S

OY
R

S

PER DOCUMENT: 2016044546

LOT 13, BLOCK 75, CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA, AS SHOWN ON MAP OF "CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA, MONTEREY COUNTY, CALIFORNIA",
FILED FOR RECORD MARCH 7, 1902 IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF THE COUNTY OF MONTEREY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
IN VOLUME 1 OF MAPS, "CITIES AND TOWNS", AT PAGE 2.

APN 010-147-003-000

RECORD DESCRIPTION:

TREE TYPES (IF ANY) ARE INDICATED WHERE KNOWN. DIAMETERS OF TREES ARE

TREES SMALLER THAN 6" IN DIAMETER MAY NOT BE NECESSARILY SHOWN.

SHOWN IN INCHES AND ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY, TO BE VERIFIED BY AN
APPROVED ARBORIST PROVIDED BY OTHERS, PER AGREEMENT WITH THE SURVEYOR.

DIRECTION OF GROWTH AND DRIP LINE SHAPE TO BE VERIFIED BY OTHERS.

SQUARE FOOTAGE OF BUILDINGS (IF ANY) IS SHOWN APPROXIMATE ONLY,
AND SUBJECT TO REVISION AT ANY TIME.

2 Saucito Avenue
DEL REY OAKS, CALIFORNIA 93940 (831) 620-5032

info@lucidosurveyors.com

ONE SHEET ONLY

VOLUME 1 of CITIES & TOWNS at PAGE 2
in

OF

LOT 13, BLOCK 75

STATE OF CALIFORNIACOUNTY OF MONTEREYCITY OF CARMEL

L U C I D O S U R V E Y O R S
B Y

ALTA Surveys and GIS Database Management · Land Planning and Consulting
Boundary and Construction Surveys · Topographic and Planimetric Mapping

SCALE: 1"=10' PROJECT No. 1801 MAY 30, 2017 V2

David Fink
P R E P A R E D F O R

Records of Monterey County

PROPOSED EASEMENT AND NEW PARCEL:
The proposed new lot will include the roof (40x100)
and building of a 1600 square foot residence.

The proposed easement will be for ingress and egress purposes,
along with construction, utitlity, view, landscape, maintenace
and other incidental purposes.

SHEET INDEX

C - 1        SURVEY
A - 1        EXISTING BASEMENT & PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR PLAN
A - 2        PROPOSED 2ND FLOOR PLAN
A - 3        EXISTING ELEVATIONS
A - 4        PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
A - 5        PROPOSED SECTIONS

20



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

August 21, 2017 

 
To: Chair Erik Dyar and Board Members 

From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 

Submitted by: Marnie R. Waffle, Senior Planner 

Subject:  Consideration of a Resolution to add a historic resource to the Carmel 
Register and consideration of a recommendation to the City Council to 
approve a Mills Act Contract (MA 17-213) for an existing historic 
residence located in the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt a Resolution adding a historic resource to the Carmel Register and recommend City 
Council approval of a Mills Act Contract. 
 
Application: MA 17-213 APN: 010-039-007 
Block: 66   Lots: 2, 3, 4 (S/PTS) 
Location: NW Santa Rita St & Ocean Ave  Property Owner: Sandra J. Markowski 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The project site is located on the Northwest corner of Santa Rita Street and Ocean Avenue in 
the R-1 Single-Family Residential zoning district. The existing residence is known as ‘Doll’s 
House’. The cottage is approximately 1,150 square feet and is located on a 2,600 square foot 
lot. The primary entry to the residence faces Ocean Avenue. The residence was constructed in 
1928 by designer/builder Hugh Comstock for eastern investor W.O. Swain. 
 
On June 9, 2017, the property owner, Sandra J. Markowski, submitted a request to add the 
property to the Carmel Register of Historic Resources and submitted an application for a Mills 
Act contract. In order to be considered for a Mills Act contract a resource must be listed on the 
Carmel Register of Historic Resources. 
 
A Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) Form 523A was completed for ‘Doll’s House’ in 
2002 and the resource was added to the Carmel Inventory in 2005. A Resolution Designating a 
Historic Resource for Doll’s House Cottage was recorded with the County Recorder on January 

21



MA 17-213 (Markowski) 
August 21, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
4, 2007 (Document #2007001197). Resources on the Carmel Inventory are eligible for listing on 
the Carmel Register at the request of the property owner and upon approval by the Historic 
Resources Board. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS: 
Carmel Municipal Code Section 17.32.090 sets forth the eligibility criteria for the Carmel 
Register of Historic Resources and Section 17.32.100 sets forth the benefits available to historic 
resources on the Register.  
 
Carmel Register of Historic Resources 
The Carmel Municipal Code requires that the City maintain a Register of Historic Resources 
designated by the City for public recognition and benefits. Only identified historic resources 
included in the Carmel Inventory are eligible for listing on the Register. 
 
As noted above, ‘Doll’s House’ was added to the Carmel Inventory in 2005 and recorded in 
2007. Resources identified as significant at a local or regional level shall be eligible for listing in 
the Register at the request of the property owner and upon approval by the Historic Resources 
Board. Staff has included the Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR) Form 523A as 
Attachment D to this report. 
 
Benefits Available to Historic Resources 
The Carmel Municipal Code establishes incentive programs for owners of historic resources that 
are listed in the Carmel Register. One such incentive is a Mills Act Historical Property Contract. 
A Mills Act contract is an agreement between the City and a property owner of a historic 
building on the Carmel Register. The property owner agrees to rehabilitate, maintain and 
preserve the historical building and in return receives a reduction in property taxes.  
 
A Mills Act contract requires that, 1) historic elements of the property are maintained in good 
condition; 2) a plan for the rehabilitation and maintenance of the historic resource is prepared 
and submitted by a qualified professional; 3) implementation of the plan conforms to the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation; and, 4) an annual report is submitted to 
the City specifying all work that was done to maintain and preserve the historic resource during 
the year. 
 
A Mills Act contract has a term of 10 years and one year is added to the term annually upon 
each anniversary date of the contract unless one or both parties take action to terminate the 
contract.  
 

22



MA 17-213 (Markowski) 
August 21, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 
Findings 
Carmel Municipal Code Section 17.32.100.B.6(c) sets forth findings that the Historic Resources 
Board and City Council shall make in order to grant approval of a Mills Act Contract. The 
required findings are listed below followed by an analysis by staff on how the application meets 
the requirements.  
 
Finding #1: The building is designated as a historic resource by the City and is listed on the 
Carmel Register. 
 
Analysis: The residence was the subject of a historic evaluation in 2002 (Attachment D) and has 
been placed on the Carmel Inventory of Historic Resources. The residence is not currently listed 
on the Carmel Register; however, the applicant submitted a written request on June 9, 2017 to 
add the residence to the Register. 
 
Finding #2: The proposed rehabilitation/restoration and maintenance plan is appropriate in 
scope and sufficient in detail to guide long-term rehabilitation/restoration and maintenance. 
Required maintenance and rehabilitation should be more significant than just routine 
maintenance that would be expected for any property. 
 
Analysis: The applicant submitted a rehabilitation/restoration and maintenance plan on June 9, 
2017 prepared by Wayne Wood Construction, Inc (Attachment B). The plan covers a period of 
10 years from 2017-2027. The plan was reviewed by Historic Preservation Consultant, Kent 
Seavy, who supports the maintenance plan. The plan includes routine maintenance as well as 
more substantial repairs including $15,000 to repair the foundation; $15,000 to replace the roof 
eaves and overhang;  and, $28,000 to replace the roof and gutters. All 
rehabilitation/restoration and maintenance work shall be completed in conformance with the 
Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (Attachment E).  
 
Finding #3: Alterations to the historic resource have been in the past, and will continue to be in 
the future, limited to interior work and to exterior rehabilitation and alterations that: 
 

(A) Comply with the Secretary’s Standards (future additions only); and 
(B) Do not significantly alter, damage or diminish any primary elevation or character-

defining feature; and 
(C) Do not increase floor area on the property by more than 15 percent beyond the 

amount established in the documented original or historic design of the resource; 
and 

(D) Do not result in any second-story addition to a single-story historic resource. 

23



MA 17-213 (Markowski) 
August 21, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 
Analysis: As noted above, rehabilitation/restoration and maintenance work shall be completed 
in conformance with the Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation. Any future 
alterations are required to be consistent with conditions A-D above. 
 
Finding #4: The Mills Act contract will aid in offsetting the costs of rehabilitating and 
maintaining the historic resource. 
 
Analysis: Approval of the contract would assist in offsetting the rehabilitation/restoration and 
maintenance costs of ‘Doll’s House’ by reducing the tax liability on the property thereby freeing 
up funds for the rehabilitation. Some of the more notable work that is proposed to be 
accomplished within the first few years would include, repairing the deterioration foundation 
along the southwest corner of the building, presumably due to settlement and poor drainage; 
replacing the roof which has missing shingles and evidence of age-related wear; repainting the 
residence; and, rehabilitating windows and doors. 
 
Finding #5: Approval of the Mills Act contract will represent an equitable balance of public and 
private interests and will not result in substantial adverse financial impact on the City. 
 
Analysis: Approval of the Mills Act Contract will be consistent with Goal 1-5 and Objective 1-16 
of the Land Use & Community Character Element of the General Plan which encourages 
providing incentives for property owners to preserve and rehabilitate historic resources. 
Although the adoption of a Mills Act Contract will decrease property tax revenue to the City, 
the financial impact would be minimal because: 1) the number of Mills Act contracts is limited 
to three per year and only one application was submitted for 2017; 2) the City would continue 
to receive a portion of the property tax revenue; and, 3) the value of preserving a historic 
resource offsets the loss of revenue. This contract represents an equitable balance of public 
and private interests.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment A – Legal Property Description 
• Attachment B – Restoration/Maintenance Plan 
• Attachment C – Photographs of Property 
• Attachment D – DPR 523A Form  
• Attachment E – Secretary of the Interior Standards 
• Attachment F – Draft Mills Act Contract  
• Attachment G– Resolution for Carmel Register  

24



25

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A - Legal Description



26

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Maintenance Plan



27

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C - Photographs



28



29



30



31



32



33

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment D - DPR 523 Form



34



35



SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment." 

 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 

removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize 
a property shall be avoided." 

 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  

 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 

significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the 

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated 
by documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 

 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 

 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 

 
10.  "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

 

36

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment E - Secretary's Standards



  Page 1 of 5 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
 
CITY CLERK 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
NAME:  CITY CLERK 
  CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 
ADDRESS: CITY HALL 
  P.O. Box CC 
  CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA, CA 93921 

 
 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
MILLS ACT AGREEMENT 

HISTORIC PROPERTY PRESERVATION CONTRACT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this __th day of MONTH, 2017 by and between the CITY OF 
CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as “City”), and Sandra J. Markowski 
(hereinafter referred to as “Owner”). 
 
RECITALS 

 
(i) California Government Code Section 50280, et seq. (known as the Mills Act) authorizes cities to 

enter into contracts with the owners of qualified historic properties to provide for their appropriate 
use, maintenance and restoration such that these historic properties retain their historic 
characteristics; 

 
(ii) The Owner possesses fee title in and to that certain real property, together with associated 

structures and improvements thereon, located at the southwest corner of San Carlos Street and 12th 
Avenue (APN: 010-164-001), Carmel, California, (hereinafter referred to as the “Historic Property”). 
A legal description of the Historic Property is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit “A” and is 
incorporated herein by this reference; 

 
(iii) The property is identified as an historic resource on the City of Carmel’s Register of Historic 

Resources; 
 
(iv) City and Owner, for their mutual benefit, now desire to enter into this Agreement both to protect 

and preserve the characteristics of historical significance of the Historic Property, and to qualify the 
Historic Property for an assessment of valuation pursuant to the provisions of Article 1.9 
(commencing with section 439) of Chapter 3 of Part 2 of Division 1 of the California Revenue and 
Taxation Code. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, City and Owner, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein, do hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM. This Agreement shall be effective and commence on 1 January 2017, 

unless otherwise indicated by Monterey County, and shall remain in effect for a term of ten (10) 
years thereafter. 

 

37

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment F - Mills Act Contract



  Page 2 of 5 

2. AUTOMATIC RENEWAL. Each year, upon the anniversary of the effective date of this Agreement 
(hereinafter referred to as “annual renewal date”), one (1) year shall be added automatically to the 
term of this Agreement, unless timely notice of nonrenewal is given as provided in paragraph 3 of 
this Agreement. The total length of the contract shall not exceed twenty (20) years.  

 
3. NOTICE OF NONRENEWAL. If City or Owner desires in any year not to renew this Agreement, that 

party shall serve written notice of nonrenewal in advance of the annual renewal date of this 
Agreement as follows: Owner must serve written notice of nonrenewal at least ninety (90) days 
prior to the annual renewal date; City must serve written notice of the nonrenewal at least sixty (60) 
days prior to the annual renewal date. Upon receipt by Owner of a notice of nonrenewal from the 
City, Owner may make a written protest. At any time prior to the annual renewal date, City may 
withdraw its notice of nonrenewal. 

 
4. EFFECT OF NOTICE OF NONRENEWAL. If either City or Owner serves timely notice of nonrenewal in 

any year, and this contract is not renewed, this Agreement shall remain in effect only for the 
remaining nine (9) years from the last annual renewal date. 

 
5. VALUATION OF PROPERTY. During the term of this Agreement, Owner is entitled to seek assessment 

of valuation of the Historic Property pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 of Part 2 of Division 1 of 
the California Revenue and Taxation Code. 

 
6. PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY. Owner shall preserve and maintain the characteristics of historical 

significance of the Historic Property. Attached hereto marked as Exhibit “B”, and incorporated 
herein by this reference, is a list of those minimum standards and conditions for maintenance, use 
and preservation of the Historic Property, which shall apply to such property throughout the term of 
this Agreement. The Owner agrees to complete rehabilitation and/or maintenance activities of the 
structure and comply with such conditions as specified in Exhibit “B” including the conditions 
outlined by the City’s Historic Preservation Consultant. Requests for substantial revisions to the 
maintenance and rehabilitation plan shall be reviewed by the Historic Resources Board prior to 
implementation. In addition, Owner shall comply with the terms of the City’s Historic Preservation 
Ordinance (CMC 17.32). Owners shall not be permitted to further impede the view corridor with any 
new structure, such as walls, fences, or shrubbery, so as to prevent the viewing of the Historic 
Property from the public right-of-way. 

 
7. RESTORATION OF PROPERTY. Owner shall, where necessary, restore and rehabilitate the Historic 

Property to conform to the rules and regulations of the Office of Historic Preservation of the State 
Department of Parks and Recreation, U. S. Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation, 
State Historical Building Code, and the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, all as amended.  

 
8. INSPECTIONS. Owner shall allow periodic examinations, with reasonable notice thereof, of the 

interior and exterior of the Historic Property by representatives of the County Assessor, the State 
Department of Parks and Recreation, the State Board of Equalization, the City and other agencies as 
may be necessary to determine Owner’s compliance with the terms and provisions of this 
Agreement. 

 
9. PROVISION OF INFORMATION. Owner shall furnish the City with any and all information requested 

by City, which City deems necessary or advisable to determine compliance with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
10. ANNUAL REPORT. Owner shall submit an annual report at least 90 days prior to each annual renewal 

date to the Department of Planning and Building specifying all work that has been done to maintain 

38



  Page 3 of 5 

and preserve the historic resource over the preceding year in compliance with the approved 
maintenance plan. 

 
11. CANCELLATION. The City has the right to cancel the contract if the historic resource is damaged or 

destroyed by unauthorized additions, alterations or remodeling. The City also has the right to cancel 
this contract if the owners(s) have repeatedly failed to comply with the provisions of paragraph’s # 
6, 7, 8 or 10 of this Agreement after the City has provided reasonable notice of any failure to comply 
with the agreement. Cancellation of a contract by the City consistent with the provisions of this 
paragraph requires a public hearing and, if cancelled, results in the immediate termination of the 
contract and a penalty equal to 12.5 percent of the assessed market value of the property. City’s 
right to cancel this Agreement pursuant to this paragraph shall in no way limit or restrict its rights or 
legal remedies arising from City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance and Municipal Code. 

 
12. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In lieu of and/or in addition to any provisions to cancel this 

Agreement as referenced herein, City may specifically enforce, or enjoin the breach of, the terms of 
this Agreement. 

 
13. WAIVER. City does not waive any claim or default by Owner if City does not enforce or cancel this 

Agreement. All remedies at law or in equity, which are not otherwise provided for this Agreement or 
in City’s regulations governing historic properties are available to City to pursue in the event there is 
a breach of this Agreement. No waiver by City of any breach or default under this Agreement shall 
be deemed to be a waiver of any other subsequent breach thereof or default hereunder. 

 
14. BINDING EFFECT OF AGREEMENT. Owner hereby subjects the Historic Property to the covenants, 

reservations and restrictions set forth in this Agreement. City and Owner hereby declare their 
specific intent that the covenants, reservations, and restrictions as set forth herein shall be deemed 
covenants running with the land and shall pass to and be binding upon Owner’s successors and 
assigns in title or interest to the Historic Property. A successor in interest shall have the same rights 
and obligations under this Agreement as the original owner who executed the Agreement. 

 
Each and every contract, deed or other instrument hereinafter executed, governing or conveying the 
Historic Property, or any portion thereof, shall conclusively be held to have been executed, 
delivered and accepted subject to the covenants, reservations and restrictions expressed in this 
Agreement regardless of whether such covenants, reservations and restrictions are set forth in such 
contract, deed or other instrument. 

 
City and Owner hereby declare their understanding and intent that the burden of the covenants, 
reservations and restrictions set forth herein touch and concern the land in that it restricts 
development of the Historic Property. City and Owner hereby further declare their understanding 
and intent that the benefit of such covenants, reservations and restrictions touch and concern the 
land by enhancing and maintaining the cultural and historic characteristics and significance of the 
Historic Property for the benefit of the public and Owner. 

 
15. NOTICE. Any notice required to be given by the terms of this Agreement shall be provided at the 

address of the respective parties as specified below, by personal delivery or United States mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 
 City: Carmel-by-the-Sea 
  Community Planning & Building Department 
  P.O. Box CC 
  Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93921 
 

39



  Page 4 of 5 

 Owner:  Sandra J. Markowski  
   907 Elm Terrace 
   Newton, N.J. 07860 
  
16. RECORDATION. No later than twenty (20) days after the parties execute and enter into this 

Agreement, the City shall cause this Agreement to be recorded in the Office of the County Recorder 
of the County of Monterey. 

 
17. The Owner or agent of Owner shall provide written notice of this Agreement to the State Office of 

Historic Preservation within six (6) months of the date of this Agreement. 
 
18. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE. This Agreement shall be constructed and governed in accordance with 

the laws of the State of California. Should either party to this agreement bring legal action against 
the other, the case shall be handled in Monterey County, California and the party prevailing in such 
action shall be entitled to a reasonable attorney fee which shall be fixed by the judge hearing the 
case and such fee shall be included in the judgment together with all costs.  

 
19. AMENDMENTS. This agreement may be amended in whole or in part, only by a written-recorded 

instrument executed by the parties hereto. 
 
20. DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY; EMINENT DOMAIN; CANCELLATION. If the Historic Property is 

destroyed by earthquake, fire, flood, or other natural disaster such that in the opinion of the City 
Building Official more than sixty percent (60%) of the original fabric of the structure must be 
preplaced, this Agreement shall be cancelled because the historic value of the structure will have 
been destroyed. If the Historic Property is acquired in whole or in part by eminent domain or other 
acquisition by any entity authorized to exercise the power of eminent domain, and the acquisition is 
determined by the City Council to frustrate the purpose of this Agreement, this Agreement shall be 
cancelled. No cancellation fee pursuant to Government Code Section 50286 shall be imposed if the 
Agreement is cancelled pursuant to this paragraph. 

 
21. INDEMNIFICATION. Owner shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City and its elected officials, 

officers, agents and employees from any actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, 
liability, loss, damage, or injury to property or persons, including wrongful death, whether imposed 
by a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, state or local government agency, 
arising out of or incident to the direct or indirect use, operation, or maintenance of the Historic 
Property by Owner or any contractor, subcontractor, employee, agent, lessee, licensee, invitee, or 
any other person; (ii) Owner’s activities in connection with the Historic Property; and (iii) any 
restriction on the use of development of the Historic Property, from application or enforcement of 
the City’s Municipal Code, or from the enforcement of this Agreement. This indemnification 
includes, without limitation, the payment of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, 
attorneys’ fees, and related costs or expenses, and the reimbursement of the City, its elected 
officials, employees, and/or agents for all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them. 
Owner’s obligation to indemnify shall survive the termination, cancellation, or expiration of this 
Agreement and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City, its elected 
officials, employees, or agents. 

 
22. SEVERABILITY. In the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be 

unenforceable or invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, or by subsequent preemptive 
legislation, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions, or portions thereof, shall not 
be affected thereby. 

  

40



  Page 5 of 5 

 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the City and Owners have executed this Agreement on the day and year written 
above. 
 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA: 
 
 
By: _______________________   Date: __________________ 
 
Name: Chip Rerig  
Title: City Administrator  
 
 
PROPERTY OWNER(S): 
 
 
By: __________________________   Date: ___________________ 
 
Name: Sharon J. Markowski 

41



Return to: 
Carmel City Hall 
Post Office Box CC 
Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93921 
Attention: Marnie R. Waffle, Senior Planner 

 
 

RESOLUTION QUALIFYING A HISTORIC RESOURCE FOR  
LISTING ON THE CARMEL REGISTER 

 
The subject property is designated a Historical Resource per Resolution recorded with the Monterey 
County Recorder on January 4, 2007 (Document No. 2007001197). This Resolution qualifies the subject 
resource to be placed on the Carmel Register which will allow the property owner to take advantage of a 
preservation incentive program to include the Mills Act Historical Property Contracts. 
 
This Resolution is being recorded pursuant to section 5029(b) of the California Public Resources Code 
that requires the City to record all historic resource determinations. This action also is taken in 
furtherance of the Local Coastal Program certified by the California Coastal Commission and 
implemented by City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Ordinances No. 2004-01 and 2004-02. 
 
As stated in the Carmel Municipal Code Section 17.32.040.C, the resource should be representative of at 
least one theme include in the Historic Context Statement; shall retain substantial integrity; should be a 
minimum of 50 years of age and shall meet at least one of the four criteria for listing in the California 
Register at a national or Statewide level of significance (primary resource) or at a regional or local level 
of significance (local resource) per CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(a)(3). The four criteria for listing are 
as follows: (1) Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns 
of local or regional history or the cultural heritage of California or the United States; (2) Is associated 
with the lives of persons important to local, California or national history; (3) Embodies the distinctive 
characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction, or represents the work of a master, 
an important creative individual, or possesses high artistic values; or (4) Has yielded, or has the potential 
to yield, information important to the prehistory or history of the local area, California or the nation. 
This resource is over 50 years of age and meets criteria No. 3. 

 
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 010-039-007 
Block: 66   Lot(s): 2, 3, 4 (S/PTS) 
Current Owner:  Sandra J. Markowski  
Street Location: NW corner of Santa Rita Street & Ocean Avenue 

 
It is the purpose of this Resolution to alert the owner, the successors and assigns to the existence of an 
historic resource on the property. This historic resource is protected under laws of the State of California 
and of the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea including the California Coastal Act, the California Public Resources 
Code, the Carmel-by-the-Sea Municipal Code and the Local Coastal Program.  
 
Attachment A – Property Legal Description (1 page)  Attachment B – DPR Form 523 (3 pages) 
 
Certified by: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Marnie R. Waffle 
Senior Planner, Carmel-by-the-Sea 

42

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment G - Resolution for Register


	MEETING AGENDA
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION
	C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	D.  APPEARANCES
	E.   CONSENT AGENDA
	K.  ADJOURNMENT


	DR 16-477 (Goodhue-Fink) - Packet.pdf
	Existing

	MA 17-213 (Markowski) - Packet.pdf
	Attach F  - Mills Act Contract.pdf
	RECITALS

	Attach G - Resolution for Carmel Register.pdf
	RESOLUTION QUALIFYING A HISTORIC RESOURCE FOR
	LISTING ON THE CARMEL REGISTER





